
Municipal Services Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMMonday, January 8, 2024

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

24-0025 Minutes from December 11, 2023.
 

12-11-2023 Meeting Minutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

23-1405 Resolution #12-R-23 Closure of the Whitman Yard Waste Site
 

#12-R-23 Closure of Whitman Yard Waste Site.pdf

Whitman Site Resolution_Staff Memo.pdf

Yard Site Community Comparison.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

11/20/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

24-0026 Approve the Department of Public Works Glendale Avenue Yard Waste 

Site Policy 

Glendale Avenue Yard Waste Site Policy MSC Jan 2024.pdfAttachments:

23-1476 Resolution #15-R-23 Parking Facility & Management Study
 

#15-R-23 Parking Facility & Management Study.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

12/11/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for denial

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 1/5/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23727
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=46c410d5-bad9-4489-b7e7-9f8bce540b35.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23579
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f899cb1f-0af3-4891-907c-43f84463a1d4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a3017e18-5c09-4396-988d-6203c4c9ddf5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d7c0f0b1-85c3-42f3-b2a1-764a3a886eb8.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23728
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f7fe5680-c87b-44a9-8cb4-d0a34d25539a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23650
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d85a747-4f5e-400f-9ffb-7f6ffaade9d1.pdf


January 8, 2024Municipal Services Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

12/20/23 Common Council referred to the Municipal Services 

Committee

24-0027 Approve the award of the 2024 Bridge Consulting Services to Collins 

Engineers, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $26,190.00.  

Collins 2024 Bridge Consulting MSC Award Memo 01-08-24.pdfAttachments:

24-0028 Approve the award of the 2024 Bridge Inspections Services (Unit R-24) 

to Collins Engineers, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $42,000.00.

Collins 2024 Bridge Inspections MSC Award Memo 01-08-24.pdfAttachments:

24-0029 Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Three-Party Engineering Design 

Services Contract between the city of Appleton, Wisconsin DOT and 

Ayres Associates Inc. for the design of Lawe Street (College Avenue to 

Wisconsin Avenue) by an amount not to exceed $33,451.95.  

Lawe Street Ayres Associates Design Amendment_Muni Services Memo_01-03-2024.pdf

Lawe Street Amendment.pdf

Attachments:

24-0030 Approve the single-source award for the Design and 

Construction-Related Services Contract with Desman Design 

Management for 2024 Repair and Maintenance Program for the Red, 

Yellow, and Green Parking Ramps in an amount not to exceed 

$68,200.00.  

Desman 2024 Ramp Repairs Consultant Services MSC Memo 01-02-2024.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

24-0031 Inspection Division Permit Summary Comparison Report for December 

2023. 

Inspections YTD Report - December 2023.pdfAttachments:

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during 

this meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 1/5/2024

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23729
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d871789-0402-47db-b9d1-f9fb48a0a264.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23730
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a1f9abd2-e5c8-41ad-aceb-3458f0932ecc.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23731
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b2035a9e-3f54-4948-9089-a946bcb60dc6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1b18a241-e144-4fbe-bdb1-55542a463229.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23732
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cae5b750-e473-49ef-8411-6e67f604c222.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23733
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=64e919b5-2ed9-471b-a986-de57b7c4f0a6.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Municipal Services Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, December 11, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and SiebersPresent: 4 - 

Van ZeelandExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

23-1488 Minutes from 11-20-2023

 

11-20-23 Meeting Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call. 

Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

23-1251 Resolution #11-R-23 Overnight Parking

 

#11-R-23 Overnight Parking.pdf

Overnight Parking Resolution #11-R-23 Staff memo.pdf

Attachments:

Hold until first regularly scheduled meeting in March.

Siebers moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Report Action Item be held. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran and Meltzer3 - 

Nay: Siebers1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23662
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=764ce8fc-b2ef-4f89-962e-297171acf5c1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23425
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=969671cf-5ff4-44c9-9e1c-3589b6e9c620.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=735c8d87-3aa4-4007-8151-f2ec3f08165b.pdf


December 11, 2023Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

23-1489 Approve the Department of Public Works 2024 Fee Schedules 

 

2024 Fee Schedules.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

23-1497 *CRITICAL TIMING* Approve the award for 2024 Contract for Operation, 

Maintenance, monitoring at the Closed City of Appleton Landfill to SCS 

Engineers, in an amount not to exceed $74,574.  

Municipal Services Committee Memo Mackville 2024 award to 

SCS.pdf

Attachments:

Meltzer moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

23-1499 Approve the single source award for the 2024 Cap Maintenance at the 

Closed City of Appleton Landfill to New Paradigm Companies, LLC in an 

amount not to exceed $44,000.  

Mackville 2024 Cap Maintenance award to New Paradigm.pdfAttachments:

Alfheim moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

23-1501 Approve the change to intersection traffic control at the Tonka St/Vine St 

intersection - follow up to six-month trial period.  

 

Tonka St-Vine St (UNCONTROLLED to STOP) (post 6-month trial).pdfAttachments:

Meltzer moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23663
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51893245-ebee-4904-bf82-dc93a3bcb1f1.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23671
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1158d9b9-491c-420b-92e9-8ebf37257745.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23673
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8521af2e-9546-4617-9bf0-fbdc85d47ac6.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23675
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=992ee64e-3194-4339-bb78-7277fc19a679.pdf


December 11, 2023Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

23-1502 Approve the change to intersection traffic control at the Plaza Dr/Fountain 

Av intersection - follow up to six-month trial period. 

 

Plaza Dr-Fountain Av (YIELD to STOP) (post 6-month trial).pdfAttachments:

Alfheim moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

23-1503 Approve a parking restriction change on the 200 block of W. Prospect Av 

- follow up to six-month trial period. 

 

200 W Prospect Av Parking Change (post 6-month trial).pdfAttachments:

Alfheim moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

23-1476 Resolution #15-R-23 Parking Facility & Management Study

 

#15-R-23 Parking Facility & Management Study.pdfAttachments:

Doran moved, seconded by Siebers, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion failed by the following vote:

Aye: Doran1 - 

Nay: Alfheim, Meltzer and Siebers3 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Meltzer moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for denial. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Meltzer and Siebers3 - 

Nay: Doran1 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Information Items7.

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23676
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d7f5cc57-fb50-4305-9ce7-f4e461ed6460.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23677
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=99f58665-8074-4e3f-a66c-d8c2e96fb9da.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23650
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d85a747-4f5e-400f-9ffb-7f6ffaade9d1.pdf


December 11, 2023Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

23-1504 Inspection Division Permit Summary Comparison Report for November 

2023.  

Inspections YTD Report - November 2023.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment8.

Siebers moved, seconded by Alfheim, that the meeting be adjourned. Roll 

Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alfheim, Doran, Meltzer and Siebers4 - 

Excused: Van Zeeland1 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23678
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d320b2d6-d067-468f-a6ce-0faea22f1584.pdf


 

 

Resolu�on#12-R-23 

Resolu�on to Close Whitman Yard Waste Site 

                                                                                                             

Submited By: Alderperson Doran – District 15 
Date: November 15, 2023 
Referred To: Municipal Services Committee 

 

Whereas the City of Appleton is one of the only communities to provide two yard waste sites for 
residents; and 
 
Whereas the services offered at the Whitman yard waste site are a duplicate of services offered 
at the Glendale yard waste site and the Outagamie County solid waste and recycling center; 
and 
 
Whereas the closure of the Whitman site is able to be absorbed at the Glendale yard waste site 
with no loss in service to residents; and 
 
Whereas closing the Whitman site will save the city more than $50,000 each year in operational 
costs; and 
 
Whereas closure of the Whitman site can alleviate storage issues for both materials and 
equipment for the Department of Public Works immediately and in the future, while also 
providing additional savings in lower fuel costs and efficiencies in productivity and time savings 
for operations; 
 
Now Therefore Be It Resolved that the Appleton Common Council directs the Department of 
Public Works and relevant city departments to execute the closure of the Whitman yard waste 
site through the 2025 budget process, and carry out necessary steps in 2024 to effect this 
change in the 2025 budget. 
 

 

 



To: Municipal Services Committee 

From: Danielle Block, Director of Public Works 

Nate Loper, Deputy Director of Public Works 

Date: January 3, 2024 

Re: Resolution #12-R-23 Closure of the Whitman Yard Site 

The City of Appleton Public Works Department currently provides the following services to assist residents with 
disposing of various yard waste materials.   

• Curbside Collection
o Spring yard waste collection – Collect bagged and bundled yard waste (plants, grass, leaves, and

branches) from the terrace.  We provide 4 consecutive rounds of collection.  Free of charge.

o Fall leaf collection – Collect bulk leaves from the terrace or roadway (depending on the zone), as
well as bagged and bundled yard waste (plants, grass, leaves, and branches) from the terrace.  We
provide 3 to 4 rounds of collection.  Free of charge.

o Christmas tree collection – Collect trees from the terrace during one week each January.  Free of
charge. 

• Glendale Yard Site
o Open Year-Round Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday.  Hours: 8am to 5:45pm Summer and

8am to 4:45pm Winter
o Branches, brush, leaves, grass, yard waste, oil, appliances, tires, and single stream recycling.

Charges apply to certain items based on fee schedule.
o Site is approximately 3 acres.
o Staffed to monitor site during open hours.

• Whitman Yard Site
o Open Seasonally Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Monday (closed Thanksgiving to April 1).  Hours

8am – 5:45pm.
o Branches, brush, leaves, grass, yard waste, and oil.  Charges apply to certain items based on fee

schedule.
o Site is approximately 3 acres.
o Staffed to monitor site during open hours.

“. . .   meeting community needs . . .  enhancing quality of life.”  
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL  (920) 832-6474 



• Reason for having the yard site at Whitman and when did it open?
o Unknown.

• Will the yard sites be busier once the leaf vac areas are fully developed?
o There could be a slight increase during the peak season (2-3 weeks).

• What are the other options to have yard waste disposed of?
o We offer curbside collection in the spring and fall.  Outagamie County accepts yard waste at their

Holland Road location, which is the Outagamie County Resource Recovery Park.
o Please reference the Outagamie County Resource Recovery Park brochure and fee schedule for

further details.

• What are the details of the MOU with Grand Chute?  Terms?
o See attached agreement.

• Financial details of the Grand Chute MOU and the current operations?
o See attached agreement.
o The Town Public Works Director has indicated in writing that a closure of the Whitman yard waste

site would have an impact to their operations/community, and they would anticipate the need to
revisit the MOU should the resolution move forward.

• Overall customer experience with one site?
o Daily customer counts may increase up to 50%.

• How would you reach out to let folks know this is being considered?
o These discussions regarding a change in policy related to the yard waste sites are posted per Open

Meeting laws and guidelines.
o Town of Grand Chute has already been contacted to discuss.

• Public outreach plan if it were removed?
o This would follow the typical process like any other service level change.  These forms of

communication would include the Public Works Guide, utility bill inserts and social media
postings.

• ADA and accessibility accommodations at each site – are they the same or different?
o Both sites are flat, and customers unload their own materials.  See attached aerial photographs of

each site.

• Has there been outreach with Outagamie County?  Is there capacity at the County?
o Outagamie County Resource Recovery Park was contacted, and they indicated ample capacity.
o Current hours for the Outagamie County Resource Recovery Park

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
Outagamie 
County X 7-3:30 7-3:30 7-3:30 7-3:30 7-3:30 7-12

The following questions were asked of DPW staff, regarding this resolution. 



the County and one of the Appleton sites are open daily? 
o Public Works staff proposes the following schedule for consideration.  This would keep both sites

open with a modified schedule to better accommodate customer schedules.  This would provide a
free option for yard waste disposal, 7 days per week in the summer, and be cost neutral to
taxpayers and customers.  The proposed scheduled also helps DPW address the challenges we
face with staffing 2 sites on weekends, especially with one site being at a remote location.  The
winter schedule would be more in line with other municipalities, and allows for this employee to
assist with other operations.  We currently average 12-15 customers per day on winter weekends.

SUMMER HOURS (April to Thanksgiving) 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Glendale 9-6 9-6 X X X 9-6 9-6
Whitman X X 9-6 9-6 9-6 9-6 X

WINTER HOURS (Thanksgiving through March) 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Glendale X 9-4:30 9-4:30 9-4:30 9-4:30 9-4:30 X 
Whitman X X X X X X X 

• Is there a way to reduce costs/duplication without major consequences – alternating days of service so



Dimensional Lumber Pallet Wood
No Painted Wood No Stained Wood
No Glued Wood (OSB/Plywood) No Pressure-Treated Wood

Countertops Toilets & Sinks
Drywall (Unpainted) Formica & Laminate
Stained Wood Windows
Painted Wood Glued Wood (OSB/Plywood)

No Carpet

Cast Iron Gu�ers
Swing Sets Bed Frames
Bicycles Metal Lawn Furniture
Car Parts (No Fluids, No Plas�cs)

Small Appliances (Toasters, Blenders, Vacuums)

No Carpet No Large Appliances
No Electronics

Household Trash Clothes Food Waste Carpet
No Recycling No Appliances No Electronics
No Scrap Metal No Tires No Yard Waste

Paper (Cardboard, Newspaper, Books) No Plas�c Bags
Plas�cs (Bo�les, Jugs, Containers) No Plas�c Films/Wraps
Metal Cans & Bo�les No Trash
Glass Bo�les & Jars No Styrofoam

5 Gallon Buckets Plas�c Crates
Plas�c Laundry Hampers Plas�c Totes
Kiddie Pools (No Inflatable Pools) Plas�c Lawn Furniture
No Power Wheels No Tarps
No Vinyl Siding No Car Parts
No Drain Tile No Landscaping Edging

Chairs Tables Couches No Carpet

No Metal No Wood No Rigid Plas�cs No Carpet

Welcome to our Resource Recovery Park!

We allow customers the ease of use to safely unload their materials in 
source separated bins. Source separa�on allows for higher recovery 

rates of valuable resources. This creates longer term landfill airspace for 
our municipali�es in Outagamie County.

CLEAN WOOD
BLACK DUMPSTERS

CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION
ORANGE DUMPSTERS

METAL
DARK GREY DUMPSTERS

TRASH
RED DUMPSTERS

RECYCLING
BLUE DUMPSTERS

RIGID PLASTICS
GREEN DUMPSTERS

FURNITURE
BROWN DUMPSTERS

MATTRESSES & BOX SPRINGS
PURPLE DUMPSTERS

RESOURCE RECOVERY PARK 
SERVICE GUIDE

SCAN THIS CODE 
WITH YOUR SMARTPHONE 

TO USE OUR WASTE  
WIZARD WEBSITE TOOL!

YOU DO NOT HAVE TO LIVE IN OUTAGAMIE COUNTY TO 
USE OUR DROP-OFF SITE! 

We welcome all residents to use our Resource Recovery Park.

Expandable Polystyrene (CLEAN Hard, White Packaging Foam)

Food Packaging Foam (CLEAN Egg Cartons, Takeout Containers, Cups)

No Foam Board Insula�on No Packaging Peanuts
No Flexible Foam No Foam Cushions
No Tape, Staples, Cardboard No Dirty or Wet Foam

POLYSTYRENE FOAM
“THE FOAM DOME”



SCALE HOUSE

YOU ARE HERE

RESOURCE RECOVERY PARK

RECYCLING
BLUE DUMPSTERS

FURNITURE
BROWN DUMPSTERS

TRASH
RED DUMPSTERS

CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION
ORANGE DUMPSTERS

CLEAN WOOD
BLACK DUMPSTERS

MATTRESSES & BOX SPRINGS
PURPLE DUMPSTERS

RIGID PLASTICS
GREEN DUMPSTERS

METAL
DARK GREY DUMPSTERS

ONE WAY
ONE WAY

ONE WAY

TIRE
DROP-OFF

ELECTRONICS
DROP-OFF

NON-FREON
APPLIANCES

FREON
APPLIANCES

PROPANE &
HELIUM TANKS

TVs Monitors Computers
Printers VCRs DVD Players
Copiers Stereos

Other items as applicable. Fees may apply.

ELECTRONICS
DROP-OFF

Stoves/Ovens Microwaves
Dryers Washing Machines
Dishwashers Water Heaters
Other items as applicable. Fees may apply.

NON-FREON CONTAINING
APPLIANCES

Fridges Freezers
Dehumidifiers Ice Makers
Air Condi�oners

Other items as applicable. Fees may apply.

FREON CONTAINING
APPLIANCES

RESOURCE RECOVERY PARK 
SERVICE GUIDE

ONE WAY

BULBS & BALLASTS

WASTE MOTOR OIL
& FILTERS

BATTERIES

TR
A

N
SFER

 ST
A

TIO
N

WASTE 
COOKING 

OIL

CLEAN
ASPHALT
SHINGLES

HOLIDAY 
LIGHTS

Welcome to our Resource Recovery Park!

We allow customers the ease of use to safely unload their materials in 
source separated bins. Source separa�on allows for higher recovery rates 

of valuable resources. This creates longer term landfill airspace for our 
municipali�es in Outagamie County.

YOU DO NOT HAVE TO LIVE IN OUTAGAMIE COUNTY TO USE OUR 
DROP-OFF SITE! 

We welcome all residents to use our Resource Recovery Park.

POLYSTYRENE FOAM



2024 Rates 
Outagamie County Recycling & Solid Waste 

 
 

            Material Rate Unit 

Garbage 
(household, commercial, business) $   56.00 Per Ton 

Garbage – Out of County Rate  
(does not apply to waste from Brown, Outagamie or Winnebago Counties) $   58.00 Per Ton 

Construction & Demolition Waste Landfill Disposal 
(drywall, toilets/sinks, vinyl siding, windows, treated/stained/painted wood) $   56.00 Per Ton 
Construction & Demolition Waste Transfer Station Disposal   *dump trailers less than 10yds* 
(drywall, toilets/sinks, vinyl siding, windows, treated/stained/painted wood) $   86.00 Per Ton 
Clean Asphalt Shingles, Drywall, Vinyl Siding  
No cedar shake, wood, metal, trash, or household garbage $   35.00 Per Ton 
Yard Waste  
(leaves, garden/grass clippings, straw/hay, brush & tree limbs < 6” diameter) $   36.00 Per Ton 
Aggregate 
(asphalt, brick & base, concrete, granite, gravel, pavers, stone/rock ) $     5.00 Per Ton 
Non-Freon Appliances 
(dryer, microwave, stove, washer, water heater) $   20.00 Each 
Freon Appliances 
(A/C, dehumidifier, bubbler, freezer, refrigerator, water cooler) $   20.00 Each 

All Mattresses and Box Springs     $     5.00 Each 

Tires - All sizes    $   12.00 Each 

Tires - 5 or more         $ 425.00 Per Ton 

Fluorescent Bulbs - All sizes     (Households Only)    $     1.00 Each 

Television/Monitor - All sizes $   30.00 Each 

Computer Tower, Laptop, Game Console, Printer/Scanner/Fax Machine    $     5.00 Each 

DVD/VCR, Cable Box, Keyboard/Speakers/Cords, Cell Phones 
Free of 
Charge - 

Propane Tank - 20lb.  
(empty)    $     5.00 Each 

Propane Tank - 1lb.  
(empty) 

Free of 
Charge - 

Waste Oil/Filters / Cooking Oil     (General Public Only / 10 Gal Maximum) Free of 
Charge - 

Batteries - (rechargeable, vehicle)  
(Alkaline or single use batteries may be disposed of in trash). 

Free of 
Charge - 

Soil/Dirt $   56.00 Per Ton 

Sod $   56.00 Per Ton 
Contaminated Soil, Auto Shredder Fluff, Foundry Sand, Grits/Screenings, Incinerator 
Ash, Pit Waste, Septic Tank     *pending approval* 
Call (920) 832-2031 for disposal instructions 

 
$   56.00 

 
Per Ton 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Sludge     *pending approval*              
Call (920) 832-2031 for disposal instructions    $   65.00         Per Ton 

Non-Friable Asbestos 
Call (920) 832-2031 for disposal instructions 

$  70.00 
   $  30.00  

Per Ton 
min. charge 

Friable Asbestos 
Call (920) 832-2031 for disposal instructions 

 $  370.00 
   $  30.00  

Per Ton 
min. charge 

 
All weighed vehicles over 720 lbs. are prorated at $56/Ton with a $20.00 minimum charge 





Customer
Dump Pile

Ground
Brush

Pile

City Parcels

12/12/2023, 2:32:25 PM 1:1,128
0

0

0.01 0.01

0.01 0.02

0.02 mi

0.04 km

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Free
Mulch

Glendale Yard Site

N

Cu
st

om
er

D
um

p 
Pi

le

Railroad Tracks

2625 E 
Glendale

3001E 
Glendale



Pond/
Wetlands

Customer
Dump
Pile

Whitman Yard Site

Free
Mulch

Ground
Brush PilePond/

Wetla
nds

City Parcels

12/12/2023, 2:51:50 PM 1:1,128
0

0

0.01 0.01

0.01 0.02

0.02 mi

0.04 km

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

W
hi

tm
an

 A
ve

nu
e

N

Customer
Dump
Pile



2023 Community Yard Waste Survey

Community
Yard Waste 

Site
Days Open - 

Summer
Days Open - 

Winter
Distance from 
Site to Landfill

Appleton - Current Yes Fri, Sat, Sun, Mon Fri, Sat, Sun, Mon 3 miles

Appleton - 
Proposed

Yes

Fri, Sat, Sun, 
Mon at Glendale, 
Tues, Wed, Thur 
and Fri at 
Whitman.

Mon - Fri at 
Glendale.  
Whitman closed.

3 miles

Eau Claire Yes
Mon, Wed and 
Saturday.  

Closed 6 miles

Grand Chute
Partners with 
Appleton

Appleton site 
hours

Appleton site 
hours

3 miles

Kimberly Yes
7 days/week.  No 
attendant on site.

7 days/week.  No 
attendant on site.

3 miles

LaCrosse Yes
Mon, Tues, Sat 
and Sunday.

Closed 10 miles

Little Chute Yes
7 days/week.  No 
attendant on site.

7 days/week.  No 
attendant on site.

2 miles

Manitowoc
No. County 
operated site 
only.

NA NA NA

Menasha Yes
Mon - Fri (full day) 
and Sat morning. 

Mon - Fri 10 miles

Neenah Yes
Mon - Fri (full day) 
and Sat morning. 

Mon - Fri 8 miles

Oshkosh Yes 7 days/week. Mon - Fri 7 miles
Sheboygan Yes Mon - Sat Mon - Sat 3 miles
Stevens Point Yes Tues, Thur, Sat Tues, Thur, Sat 10 miles

Waupaca
No. Residents 
directed to 
County site.

NA NA NA

Wausau Yes
Wed, Fri, Sat, 
Sunday.

Closed 29 miles

Page 1 of 1



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
Engineering Division 

100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI  54911 
Phone: 920-832-6474 “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Effective Date: November 10, 2004 

Updated: January 20132024 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS  

GLENDALE AVENUE YARD WASTE SITE POLICY 

This policy has been developed to provide appropriate, consistent, and cost-effective use of the Glendale Avenue 
Yard Waste Site.  This site is available for residents, not contractors or commercial properties. 

I. CITY OF APPLETON RESIDENTS MAY DROP OFF:
Leaves, brush, grass, metal, batteries, antifreeze, motor oil, tires, appliances, and overflow garbage/bulky
curbside recycling items.

II. TOWN OF GRAND CHUTE RESIDENTS MAY DROP OFF:
Leaves, brush, and grass. and motor oil.

III. OUTAGAMIE COUNTY RESIDENTS MAY DROP OFF:
Motor oil.

IV.III. FEES:
A. Freon appliances $20 drop-off $25 curb 
B. Non-freon appliances $15 drop-off  $20 curb 
C. Tires (no rims) $128 each 
D. Grass $4 per bag 
E. Grass Card $40 
F. Overflow garbage $15 for any overflow garbage 
G. Overflow garbage $35 for vehicle with garbage plus a trailer 

V.IV. REGULATIONS:
A. All customers shall be carded for provide proof of residency.
B. Building materials, yard waste, gGarbage and overflow items are not accepted from contractors.
C. Dirt, root balls, stumps, and sod are not accepted.
D. Skids and wood lumber are not accepted.go on wood pile.
E. Sand, gravel and concrete are not accepted.
F. Treated wood products are considered overflow garbage.
G.F. Electronics and hazardous waste are not accepted.
H.G. Shingles are not accepted.
I.H. Oil filters are not accepted.

VI. COMMITMENT
Attempt will be made to have appropriate amount of containers on site for overflow purposes, but no guarantee
based on space and staffing constraints.



 

 

Resolution #15-R-23 

Resolution for a downtown parking facility and management study                                                                                                             

Submitted By: Alderperson Doran – District 15 
Date: December 6, 2023 
Referred To: Municipal Services Committee 

 

Whereas downtown parking is an important component to support local businesses and 
provide downtown visitors adequate places to park; and, 
 
Whereas the City of Appleton Department of Public Works currently maintains and 
operates three parking ramps providing roughly 2,700 parking stalls for permit and 
hourly parking, about 700 on-street metered parking stalls, three public skywalks and 
two surface lots; and, 
 
Whereas the City of Appleton Department of Public Works has a desire to optimize best 
practices for publicly-owned parking assets and analyze the value and condition of said 
assets; and, 
 
Whereas operating municipal parking utilities are a fiscal challenge and municipalities 
around the country have, for a variety of reasons, sold municipally-owned parking 
ramps, or leased ramps and on-street parking stalls to private management companies 
to generate much needed one-time and on-going revenues; now 
 
Therefore be it resolved that the Appleton Common Council directs city staff to prepare 
a request for proposals to develop a parking facility strategic plan, to include a study to 
assess the value and conditions of the city’s publicly-owned parking assets, to look at 
best management practices and options, including the sale or lease of parts or all of the 
parking utility, and to develop a downtown marketing and promotional campaign. 



Department of Public Works – Engineering Division

MEMO

TO: Municipal Services Committee

FROM: Chad Weyenberg, Project Engineer

DATE: January 8, 2024

RE: Notification of Award of Contract for 2024 Bridge Consulting Services to Collins
Engineers, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $26,190.

_______________________________________________________________________________

The State of Wisconsin requires that the City completes a Bridge Rehabilitation Report prior to
submitting for any Federal and State Local Bridge Program Funds.  The Memorial Drive Bridge
over the Fox River is eligible for maintenance funds due to the sufficiency rating being below 80.
This report will look in depth at the condition of the structure and provide long term maintenance
plans, budgets, and recommendations.

This contract is also for the consultant to perform a scour analysis on the Osprey Drive and Harrier
Lane bridge structures.  Scour analysis reports are required to meet the current WisDOT bridge
database requirements.  The Department of Public Works requested proposals from seven qualified
Wisconsin consulting firms. The City received one qualified proposal from Collins Engineers, Inc.
($26,190.00)

Collins Engineers, Inc. demonstrated the related experience and personnel necessary to complete
the required tasks.  In addition, they also demonstrated a good project understanding and approach.

Therefore, staff recommends award of the 2024 Bridge Consulting Services to Collins
Engineers, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $26,190.00



















Department of Public Works – Engineering Division

MEMO

TO: Municipal Services Committee

FROM: Chad Weyenberg, Project Engineer

DATE: January 8, 2024

RE: Notification of Award of Contract for 2024 Bridge Inspections Services (Unit R-24)
to Collins Engineers, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $42,000.

_______________________________________________________________________________

The State of Wisconsin requires that the City inspect, record and report to the State on the condition
of its bridges every two years.  The Department of Public Works requested proposals from six
qualified Wisconsin consulting firms.  The City received two qualified proposals from Collins
Engineers, Inc. ($41,688.40) and Ayres Associates ($58,300.00).

Collins Engineers, Inc. demonstrated the related experience and personnel necessary to complete
the required tasks.  In addition, they also demonstrated a good project understanding and approach.

Therefore, staff recommends award of the 2024 Bridge Inspection Services Contract to
Collins Engineers, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $42,000.00



















Department of Public Works – Engineering Division 

MEMO 

TO: Municipal Services Committee 

FROM: Danielle Block, Director of Public Works 
Pete Neuberger, City Engineer 

DATE: January 3, 2024 

RE: Amendment No. 1 the Three-Party Engineering Design Services Contract between the City 
of Appleton, Wisconsin DOT and Ayres Associates Inc. for the design of Lawe Street 
(College Avenue to Wisconsin Avenue) by an amount not to exceed $33,451.95. 

_______________________________________________________________________________  

The Department of Public Works has received notice from WisDOT to approve a Lawe Street design 
contract amendment for the inclusion of storm sewer design.  The proposed contract amendment will 
provide for design integration of the corresponding infrastructure with the ongoing pavement design.  The 
inclusion of the storm sewer design and construction was at the request of the City.  These costs are 
eligible for both design and construction related cost share at 80% Federal/State and 20% Local, limited 
to the overall Federal/State funding cap of $364,907 for design and $2,454,193 for construction. 

Therefore, DPW recommends approval to amend the design contract for Lawe Street Reconstruction with 
Ayres Associates by an amount not to exceed $33,451.95, for a new not-to-exceed total contract amount 
of $473,386.33. 



Date: February 22, 2017    Page 1 of 2 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE CONTRACT 
BETWEEN CITY OF APPLETON (MUNICIPALITY),  

THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AND AYRES ASSOCIATES INC (CONSULTANT) FOR 

 
Project ID 4984‐24‐74 
C Appleton, Lawe Street 

College Avenue to Wisconsin Ave 
Local Street, Outagamie County 

 
 
The contract made and entered into by and between the MUNICIPALITY, DEPARTMENT and CONSULTANT, 
dated June 20, 2023 is hereby amended as set forth on the following pages. 
 
The primary reason(s) for this amendment:   
 
As requested by the MUNICIAPLITY, the CONSULTANT will complete all storm sewer design. 
 
For topographic survey, environmental analysis and documentation, design reports, utility and agency 
coordination, preliminary and final roadway design and PS&E documents, actual costs to the 
CONSULTANT up to $398,255.52 (Increase of 31,359.59), plus a fixed fee of $26,086.82 (Increase of 
$2,092.36), not to exceed $424,342.34 (Increase of $33,451.95). 
 
For subsurface investigation subcontracted to ECS Midwest, LLC, the CONSULTANT’S actual cost to ECS 
Midwest, LLC not to exceed $6,951.00 (no change). 
 
For Archaeological and Historical investigations subcontracted to UWM Cultural Resource Management, 
the CONSULTANT’S actual cost to UWM Cultural Resource Management not to exceed $32,912.99 (no 
change). 
 
For title searches subcontracted to Dominion Title & Exchange Services, the CONSULTANT’S actual cost 
to Dominion Title & Exchange Services not to exceed $9,180.00 (no change). 
 
Compensation for all SERVICES provided by the CONSULTANT under the terms of the CONTRACT shall be 
for an amount not to exceed $473,386.33 (Increase of $33,451.95). 
 
The DEPARTMENT REPRESENTATIVE is: Michael Cohen, PE; NE Region Project Manager; 944 Vanderperren 
Way, Green Bay, WI 54304; Michael.Cohen@dot.wi.gov; (920) 360‐1476. 
 
The MUNICIPALITY REPRESENTATIVE is: Mark A Lahay, PE; Assistant City Engineer; 100 N Appleton Street, 
Appleton, WI 54911; Mark.Lahay@Appleton.org; (920) 832‐6486. 
 
The CONSULTANT REPRESENTATIVE is: Troy Robillard, PE; Project Manager; 3376 Packerland Drive; 
Ashwaubenon, WI 54115; RobillardT@AyresAssociates.com; (920) 498‐1200. 
 

 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3253B22-81B4-47E7-AE11-DF54462E437E

mailto:Michael.Cohen@dot.wi.gov
mailto:RobillardT@AyresAssociates.com


Date: February 22, 2017    Page 2 of 2 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have caused this amendment to be executed and approved on the 
date signed by their authorized officers or representatives. 
 
 
For the CONSULTANT          For the DEPARTMENT 
 
By:  ____________________________________    By:  _____________________________________  
 
Title:  Project Manager  ____________________    Title:   ___________________________________  
 
Date: ___________________________________    Date:  ___________________________________  
 
For the MUNICIPALITY 
 
By:  ____________________________________   
 
Title: ___________________________________   
 
Date: ___________________________________   
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3253B22-81B4-47E7-AE11-DF54462E437E

22 December 2023

Director of Public Works



 
  Page 1 of 1 

Project ID 4984-24-74, Amendment #1 
C Appleton, Lawe Street 
College Avenue to Wisconsin Avenue 
Local Street, Outagamie County 
 
THREE PARTY DESIGN CONTRACT SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
The following are recommended special provisions for the design contract to be inserted behind 
the standard provisions. 
 
VI. SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
I. ROAD PLANS shall be amended with the following: 

   
(1) The CONSULTANT will design storm sewer main, as well as storm sewer plans 

for storm sewer main, inlets/leads/laterals along the project corridor.  The storm 
sewer main will be replaced as part of roadway construction.    

DocuSign Envelope ID: C3253B22-81B4-47E7-AE11-DF54462E437E



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: C3253B2281B447E7AE11DF54462E437E Status: Sent

Subject: Complete with DocuSign: 49842474-1400045926-202401-CA1.pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 3 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Brenda Veeser

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

4822 Madison Yards Way

Madison, WI  53705

brenda.veeser@dot.wi.gov

IP Address: 98.97.13.30    

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             12/19/2023 8:57:43 AM

Holder: Brenda Veeser

             brenda.veeser@dot.wi.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Wisconsin Department of Transportation Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
TROY ROBILLARD

robillardt@ayresassociates.com

Transportation Manager

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 184.105.30.18

Sent: 12/19/2023 9:00:57 AM

Viewed: 12/22/2023 8:16:43 AM 

Signed: 12/22/2023 8:16:54 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 4/9/2020 8:11:26 PM
      ID: b00d544f-cbaa-485e-bd66-e5ba57259e13

Danielle Block

danielle.block@appleton.org

Director of Public Works

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 12/22/2023 8:16:55 AM

Viewed: 1/2/2024 11:59:14 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 1/2/2024 11:59:14 AM
      ID: 2cc0f39a-98fe-4646-a12b-371d689e922d

Andy Fulcer

Andrew.fulcer@dot.wi.gov

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp



Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 12/19/2023 9:00:57 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE 
From time to time, Wisconsin Department of Transportation (we, us or Company) may be
required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the
terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through
your DocuSign, Inc. (DocuSign) Express user account. Please read the information below
carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically to your
satisfaction and agree to these terms and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking
the 'I agree' button at the bottom of this document. 
Getting paper copies 
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by us. For such copies, as long as you are an authorized user of the
DocuSign system you will have the ability to download and print any documents we send to you
through your DocuSign user account for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such
documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of
any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a $0.00 per-page fee. You may
request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below. 
Withdrawing your consent 

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures
electronically is described below. 
Consequences of changing your mind 
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format,
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must
withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of your
DocuSign account. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive
required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use your
DocuSign Express user account to receive required notices and consents electronically from us
or to sign electronically documents from us. 
All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically 
Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide
electronically to you through your DocuSign user account all required notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or
made available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of
you inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures
electronically from us. 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 5/1/2015 4:37:22 PM
Parties agreed to: TROY ROBILLARD, Danielle Block



How to contact Wisconsin Department of Transportation: 
You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically,
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:
 To contact us by email send messages to: david.esse@dot.wi.gov
 
To advise Wisconsin Department of Transportation of your new e-mail address 

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at david.esse@dot.wi.gov and in the
body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail address.  We
do not require any other information from you to change your email address..  
In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc to arrange for your new email address to be reflected
in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in DocuSign. 
To request paper copies from Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided
by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to david.esse@dot.wi.gov and in the
body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and
telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any. 
To withdraw your consent with Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic
format you may:

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign account, and on the subsequent
page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;
ii. send us an e-mail to david.esse@dot.wi.gov and in the body of such request you must
state your e-mail, full name, IS Postal Address, telephone number, and account number.
We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent..  The consequences
of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a
longer time to process.. 

Required hardware and software 

Operating Systems: Windows2000? or WindowsXP? 

Browsers (for SENDERS): Internet Explorer 6.0? or above 

Browsers (for SIGNERS): Internet Explorer 6.0?, Mozilla FireFox 1.0,
NetScape 7.2 (or above) 

Email: Access to a valid email account 

Screen Resolution: 800 x 600 minimum 

Enabled Security Settings: 
•Allow per session cookies

 
•Users accessing the internet behind a Proxy

Server must enable HTTP 1.1 settings via
proxy connection 

** These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, we will
provide you with an email message at the email address we have on file for you at that time
providing you with the revised hardware and software requirements, at which time you will
have the right to withdraw your consent. 



Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically 
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you
were able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or
electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to
e-mail this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or
save it for your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and
disclosures exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above,
please let us know by clicking the 'I agree' button below. 
By checking the 'I Agree' box, I confirm that: 

• I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF
ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURES document; and
 

• I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can
print it, for future reference and access; and
 

• Until or unless I notify Wisconsin Department of Transportation as described above, I
consent to receive from exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be
provided or made available to me by  Wisconsin Department of Transportation during
the course of my relationship with you.
 



                 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL (920) 832-6474 

                                                                                    FAX (920) 832-6489 
 

MEMO 
 

TO:  Municipal Services Committee 
 

FROM: Pete Neuberger, Deputy Director of Public Works 
   
SUBJECT: Award Single-Source Design and Construction-Related Services Contract with Desman 

Design Management for 2024 Repair and Maintenance Program for the Red, Yellow, and 
Green Parking Ramps in an Amount Not to Exceed $68,200. 

 
DATE:  January 2, 2024 
 
 

 
In February of 2021, the Common Council authorized a sole source professional services agreement with 
Desman Design Management (“Desman”) for planning, design and administrative services related to the 
structural maintenance of the City’s public parking ramps.  This agreement was authorized for a five-year 
period, subject to continued satisfactory performance by Desman. 
 
In 2022, Desman completed a comprehensive update to their original 2019 structural condition analysis 
of all three of the City’s parking ramps.  The update included detailed descriptions of the structural 
condition of each ramp as well as general recommendations for short and long-term maintenance and 
repair needs. Accordingly, DPW developed a five-year Capital Improvement Plan to pursue recommended 
maintenance.  
 
Per single-source contract authorizations provided at the April 10, 2023, Municipal Services Committee 
and April 19, 2023, Common Council meetings, DPW contracted with Desman to complete plans and 
specifications for 2023 repairs in City parking ramps. Throughout 2023, Desman provided these services 
to the satisfaction of DPW staff. 
 
The 2024 Parking Utility budget includes $70,000 for ramp structural repairs consulting services. Based 
on the 2022 Desman structural condition analysis and subsequent observations and discussions with DPW 
and Desman staff, DPW solicited a single-source proposal from Desman to provide consulting services 
for an estimated $1.2M of 2024 ramp structural repairs and preventive maintenance work.  
 
Desman has provided DPW a proposal for design and construction-related services for 2024 structural 
repair and maintenance activities in the Red, Yellow, and Green Parking Ramps.  Desman’s proposed fee 
for these services is $68,200. 
 
 



Desman Ramp Repairs 
January 2, 2024 
-Page 2- 
 
Therefore, DPW is requesting authorization to award the single-source design and construction-related 
services contract with Desman Design Management for 2024 Repair and Maintenance Program for the 
Red, Yellow, and Green Parking Ramps in an amount not to exceed $68,200. 
 



Department of Public Works Inspections Division

1/3/2024Report Date:12/31/23Thru01/01/23

Permit Summary Count YTD Comparison

Total
Estimated

Cost

Total
Receipt
Amount

Permit
Count

Year
Issued

Permit
Type

BUILDING
2022 1,112 146,975,755 533,095.69
2023 1,127 182,429,107 612,097.39

1.35 24.12 14.82% % %
DISPLAY SIGN

2022 149 1,275,066 6,040.00
2023 148 1,310,494 6,068.00

-0.67 2.78 0.46% % %
ELECTRICAL

2022 881 14,837,483 139,016.36
2023 857 19,738,924 147,856.44

-2.72 33.03 6.36% % %
EROSION CNTL

2022 45 5,900.00
2023 18 2,650.00

-60.00 -55.08% % %
HEATING

2022 1,015 14,831,655 93,648.64
2023 957 24,642,366 100,337.14

-5.71 66.15 7.14% % %
PLAN REVIEW

2022 109 36,730.00
2023 92 35,810.00

-15.60 -2.50% % %
PLUMBING

2022 833 8,461,825 49,284.00
2023 705 12,011,812 45,628.40

-15.37 41.95 -7.42% % %
SEWER

2022 332 3,407,316 35,754.00
2023 414 13,425,196 34,624.00

24.70 294.01 -3.16% % %
WELL

2022 2 80.00
2023 19 760.00

850.00 850.00% % %

Page 1 of 2



0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

2022 2023

2022
2023

Year Issued

Number of Permits

0M

40M

80M

120M

160M

200M

240M

280M

2022 2023

2022
2023

Year Issued

Estimated Cost

0K

200K

400K

600K

800K

1000K

2022 2023

2022
2023

Year Issued

Receipt Amount

Permits

Estimated Cost

Receipt Amount

2022 2023

4478

189,789,100.00

899,548.69

4337

253,557,899.00

985,831.37

1/3/2024Report Date:12/31/23Thru01/01/23

Permit Summary Count YTD Comparison

Department of Public Works Inspections Division

Page 2 of 2


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_12-11-2023 Meeting Minutes
	0002_1_12-R-23 Closure of Whitman Yard Waste Site
	0002_2_Whitman Site Resolution_Staff Memo
	DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
	Engineering Division
	100 North Appleton Street



	0002_3_Yard Site Community Comparison
	0003_1_Glendale Avenue Yard Waste Site Policy MSC Jan 2024
	0004_1_15-R-23 Parking Facility Management Study
	0005_1_Collins 2024 Bridge Consulting MSC Award Memo 01-08-24
	Collins 2024 Bridge Consulting MSC Award Memo
	Contract pages for Award Memo

	0006_1_Collins 2024 Bridge Inspections MSC Award Memo 01-08-24
	0007_1_Lawe Street Ayres Associates Design Amendment_Muni Services Memo_01-03-2024
	Department of Public Works – Engineering Division
	MEMO

	0007_2_Lawe Street Amendment
	3prty-amd-sig
	3des-spec Lawe St

	0008_1_Desman 2024 Ramp Repairs Consultant Services MSC Memo 01-02-2024
	DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
	Engineering Division
	100 North Appleton Street
	FAX (920) 832-6489

	MEMO



	0009_1_Inspections YTD Report - December 2023



